
  

 
 

 

NOTTINGHAM CITY COUNCIL 

GREATER NOTTINGHAM LIGHT RAPID TRANSIT ADVISORY COMMITTEE 

 
Date: Tuesday, 15 September 2015 
 
Time:  2.00 pm 
 
Place: Ground Floor Committee Room - Loxley House, Station Street, Nottingham, 

NG2 3NG 
 
 
Councillors are requested to attend the above meeting to transact the following 
business 
 

 
 
Acting Corporate Director for Resources 
 
Governance Officer: Phil Wye   Direct Dial: 0115 876 4637 
 
 

AGENDA 
 

 Pages 

1  APPOINTMENT OF CHAIR  
 

 

2  APPOINTMENT OF VICE-CHAIR  
 

 

3  APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE  
 

 

4  DECLARATIONS OF INTERESTS  
 

 

5  MINUTES  
Last meeting held on 10 March 2015 (for confirmation) 
 

 

6  NET - OPERATIONAL PERFORMANCE AND PROGRESS UPDATE  
 

3 - 8 

7  CUSTOMER SATISFACTION SURVEY  
 

To Follow 

8  LETTERS FROM MEMBERS OF THE PUBLIC  
 

9 - 26 

IF YOU NEED ANY ADVICE ON DECLARING AN INTEREST IN ANY ITEM ON THE 
AGENDA, PLEASE CONTACT THE GOVERNANCE OFFICER SHOWN ABOVE, IF 
POSSIBLE BEFORE THE DAY OF THE MEETING  
 



CITIZENS ATTENDING MEETINGS ARE ASKED TO ARRIVE AT LEAST 15 MINUTES 
BEFORE THE START OF THE MEETING TO BE ISSUED WITH VISITOR BADGES 

 

CITIZENS ARE ADVISED THAT THIS MEETING MAY BE RECORDED BY MEMBERS 
OF THE PUBLIC.  ANY RECORDING OR REPORTING ON THIS MEETING SHOULD 
TAKE PLACE IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE COUNCIL’S POLICY ON RECORDING AND 
REPORTING ON PUBLIC MEETINGS, WHICH IS AVAILABLE AT 
WWW.NOTTINGHAMCITY.GOV.UK.  INDIVIDUALS INTENDING TO RECORD THE 
MEETING ARE ASKED TO NOTIFY THE GOVERNANCE OFFICER SHOWN ABOVE IN 
ADVANCE. 

http://www.nottinghamcity.gov.uk/


 

 
 

Agenda Item 

GNLRT ADVISORY COMMITTEE 

15th September 2015 

NET - OPERATIONAL PERFORMANCE AND PROGRESS UPDATE 

1. SUMMARY OF ISSUES 

1.1. The report updates the Committee on the performance of NET. 

2. RECOMMENDATION 

2.1. It is RECOMMENDED that the Committee notes this report. 

3. PURPOSE OF THE COMMITTEE 

3.1. The Committee is established under the powers of the Nottingham Express Transit Order 
2009 to advise on the operation of the tramway and to consider representations made to it 
by members of the public regarding the operation of the system. 

4. OPERATIONAL PERFORMANCE 

4.1. During the six month period from February to the end of July, the average reliability of the 
tram service was 99.5%, with 97.6% punctuality achieved. 

4.2. A total of 8.1 million passengers were carried on the system in the twelve month period to 
31st March 2015, an increase of 3% compared to the previous year. 

5. LAUNCH OF NET PHASE TWO 

5.1. On 25th August the two new tram routes, to Clifton and to Toton Lane, opened for 
passenger services, with the first trams departing from the new park and rise sites shortly 
after 6.00am.  Scores of people turned up at first light to be the amongst first to explore the 
new routes and there was an air of celebration as the day went on, with the trams becoming 
busier and busier as people flocked to try out the new network. Commuters, families and 
enthusiasts came out in force and it is clear there has been a very positive response to the 
launch from the people of Nottingham and beyond, with the interest generating high levels 
of usage on the new lines, which has continued since opening.  The opening followed two 
weeks of intensive timetable testing. 

5.2. Tram services from Toton Lane operate to Hucknall, with those from Clifton operating to 
Phoenix Park.  On weekdays and Saturdays, through-services commence at just after 
6.00am from each of the termini, with last services departing at approximately midnight.  
During the main part of the day, between 7.00am and 9.00pm, trams operate at a frequency 
of every 7 - 10 minutes on each route, resulting in a frequency of 3 - 5 minutes on the core 
section, between Nottingham Station and David Lane. On Sundays, there is a 10 minute 
frequency on each route between 9.00am and 7.00pm, resulting in a 5 minute frequency on 
the core section.  Full details of the timetable can be found on all trams and at tramstops 



 

 
 

and an interactive journey planner is available on the relaunched website at 
www.thetram.net. 

5.3. The new timetable has been performing reliably and passenger numbers across the 
network have been high. 

5.4. A month prior to the full network launch day, on 27th July, the new Nottingham Station 
tramstop opened to the public, allowing more convenient interchange for customers 
transferring to and from the train.  The old Station Street stop was decommissioned and the 
steps and lift on the north side of Station Street were temporarily closed for refurbishment 
until the end of September.  A large amount of extra signage and customer communications 
were required to direct customers safely to and from the new stop and customers were 
informed of the change though various communication channels.  Tram Ambassadors have 
been deployed at this tramstop and across the new routes to assist and inform customers. 

5.5. Some fare changes were introduced in advance of the opening of the new routes, including 
the introduction of a new full network ticket and also a cheaper (£3.50) day return ticket, 
which is available from all tramstops except for the outer termini.  A full summary of the 
tickets that are currently available can be found at Appendix A. 

4. MARKETING CAMPAIGNS 

4.1 Nottingham Beach  - Tramlink has again worked with the City Council to promote 
discretionary travel by promoting and sponsoring the Nottingham Beach. This was 
promoted via a centre section tram wrap, adverts were featured in “The Line” on-tram 
magazine, and hangers were placed on all of the trams.  NET social media has also been 
used to promote using the tram as the best way to get the beach and to use the park & ride 
sites. 

4.2 “NET on tour”  - a full programme of community roadshows has continued with recent 
events in Stapleford, Beeston and Clifton. The NET stand has offered information on the 
tram network times and fares as well as Phase Two testing and launch updates. 

4.3 Armed Forces Day  - even though this year’s Armed Forces Day event was at Wollaton 
Park, all service personnel were allowed to travel free on the tram system over the 
weekend. 

4.4 Special “Try the New Network Ticket”  - during the first week of full network operations 
people were able to buy one week’s unlimited travel for just £10 (Adult) £5 (Child).  This 
offer was aimed at getting new people to give the service a try and also as a way of giving 
existing customers a low-cost way of trying the new lines and destinations. 

 

Contact: Lea Harrison, Tramlink Nottingham Ltd 
Telephone: 0115 938 8900 
E-mail:  l.harrison@tramlinknottingham.co.uk 











 

 
 

Agenda Item 

GNLRT ADVISORY COMMITTEE 

15th September 2015 

 

LETTERS FROM MEMBERS OF THE PUBLIC 

1. SUMMARY OF ISSUES 

1.1. Three members of the public have written to the Committee since the last meeting.  The first 
correspondent has complained about being issued with a warning notice for travelling on the 
tram without having validated his pass and about the standard of the response that he has 
received from the tram operator, Nottingham Trams.  The second correspondent has 
complained about the treatment received from tram staff, when travelling on two occasions 
with her family.  The third correspondent is concerned about incidents of damage to her car 
that have occurred when she has parked at The Forest Park and Ride site.  Copies of all 
correspondence can be found at Appendix A 

2. RECOMMENDATION 

2.1. The views of the Committee are sought. 

3. CORRESPONDENT A 

3.1. Correspondent A travelled on the tram in April and was issued with a Penalty Fare Warning 
Notice by a Travel Officer when it was identified that he hadn’t validated his Kangaroo card 
at the tramstop before boarding.  He was not aware that he was required to do this before 
every journey and he was embarrassed at being removed from the tram and issued with the 
notice.  In his initial complaint to Nottingham Trams he stated that he does not want to have 
a warning against his name and that the experience has tarnished his reputation. 

3.2. Following a number of exchanges of correspondence, Nottingham Trams has explained 
that, as on buses, it is necessary to validate a Kangaroo card before boarding on every 
journey made and that this is made clear in the Conditions of Carriage, on the NET website 
and in every tram shelter.  Nottingham Trams is satisfied that that the Travel Officers 
followed the correct procedures in asking the correspondent to leave the tram and in issuing 
the warning notice. 

3.3. The correspondent remains unsatisfied with the way that his complaint has been dealt with, 
and the outcome (a warning notice), and he has therefore been advised by Nottingham 
Trams to write to the Committee for consideration of the issues raised. 



 

 
 

 

4. CORRESPONDENT B 

4.1. Correspondent B has written with regard to her experiences and those of her mother when 
travelling on the tram on two separate occasions.  On the first occasion, she was 
approached by a Travel Officer and was advised that she had not purchased the correct 
ticket for the group and that she would therefore have to leave the tram and purchase the 
correct ticket at the next tramstop.  She considers that she was spoken to in a threatening 
tone and she felt humiliated and frustrated; as a consequence of the interruption to her 
journey, she was late arriving at the theatre. 

4.2. On the second occasion, the correspondent’s mother was travelling on the tram from Lace 
Market to Phoenix Park.  A technical fault to the tram caused it to be withdrawn from service 
soon after departing from Highbury Vale tramstop and passengers were required to leave 
the tram and were led back to the platform by the driver, along the side of the track.  No 
tram staff remained on the platform with the passengers and no information about the 
expected length of the disruption was provided.  The correspondent’s mother therefore 
decided to walk to Highbury Vale, an area with which she is not acquainted, and almost 
fainted from exhaustion as a result of the exceptionally hot weather.  The correspondent 
considers it unacceptable that her mother was asked to leave the tram without support to 
reach her destination, and without consideration for her health, safety and wellbeing, and 
she feels that standards of customer service have fallen short. 

4.3. Following full investigations of both events, Nottingham Trams has responded to the 
correspondent by informing her that, on the first occasion, they are satisfied that the Travel 
Officers followed the correct procedure in asking her to leave the tram to buy the correct 
ticket.  In such circumstances, it is not possible for trams to be held-up whilst a ticket is 
purchased and it was therefore necessary for her to wait for the next tram.  It was deemed 
appropriate by the Travel Officers to allow a ticket to be bought, rather than to issue a 
penalty fare notice.  The Travel Officers are fully trained in dealing sensitively with 
passengers and Nottingham Trams have assured the correspondent that there was no 
intention to be threatening. 

4.4. With regard to the journey made by the correspondent’s mother, Nottingham Trams have 
stated that they had no advance notice of the fault that occurred on the tram on which she 
was travelling.  The passengers were assisted off the tram to the nearest place of safety, in 
accordance with health and safety procedures, and Travel Officers were deployed to further 
assist passengers at tramstops immediately following the incident.  However, at the time 
that the correspondent’s mother took the decision to walk into Highbury Vale, no Travel 
Officers had arrived, and the tram driver did not have sufficient information to advise 
passengers on how long the incident would last.  Nottingham Trams have extended its best 
wishes for a speedy recovery to the correspondent’s mother and offered a day’s travel pass 
as a gesture of goodwill.  They have apologised for not meeting customer expectations on 
the two occasions. 



 

 
 

 

5. CORRESPONDENT C 

5.1. Correspondent C has been parking her car regularly at The Forest park and ride site since 
the beginning of the year.  On two occasions recently she has returned to find that damage 
has been inflicted whilst the car has been parked; on the first occasion, dust caps were 
found to have been stolen from the tyres and, on the second, a tyre was found to be flat, 
which she believes to have been done deliberately.  A relation has also found damage to 
her car when she has parked at The Forest.  Due to their concerns about safety at The 
Forest, both the correspondent and her relation now park at Phoenix Park when catching 
the tram. 

5.2. All the tram park and ride sites are monitored by CCTV cameras and by random patrols by 
NET operations staff.  The Forest has almost 1,000 parking spaces and is heavily used 
each day.  The police provide records to the tram operator of all incidents of crime that are 
reported to them at the park and ride sites and, since the beginning of the year, the total 
number of reported incidents has been very low with all of the incidents that have occurred 
being of a minor nature.  Whilst Nottingham Trams expresses its sympathies to the 
correspondent with regard to her experiences, they would like to reassure her that, based 
on available statistics and on their own monitoring exercises, it is not considered that there 
is a significant safety or security issue at the car park.  They will however continue to 
monitor the situation. 

Contact Officer: Andy Holdstock 

Telephone Number: 0115 8764199 

E-mail:  andrew.holdstock@nottinghamcity.gov.uk 
































	Agenda
	6 NET - Operational performance and progress update
	Ops and Performance Update Appendix A pg1
	Ops and Performance Update Appendix A pg2

	8 Letters from members of the public
	Letters from Members of the Public Appendix A Correspondent A
	Letters from Members of the Public Appendix A Correspondent B
	Letters from Members of the Public Appendix A Correspondent C


